
FEDERAL ElECTION COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 

August S, 2011 

TWO WAY MEMORANDUM 

TO: 
FROM: 

OGCDocket 
Rosa E. Swinton~? 
Financial Operation Specialist 

SUBffiCT: Account Determination for Funds Received 

n , 
r-
l> 

We recently received :a check from Empme Stata Regional Council of 
Carpenters. The check number is 3112. Dated 07/27/2011, in the amount 
of $75,000.00. A copy of the check and all correspondence are attached. 
Please indicate below which account the funds should be deposited and give 
the MUR/Case number and name associated with the deposit. 

TO: Rosa E. Swinton 
Financial Operation Specialist 

FROM: OGCDocket 

SUBJECT: Disposition of Funds Received 

In reference to the above check in the amount of$ 751 600 · 0 () 
th!L_ MUR/Case number is __ lpL\loS? and in the name of . 
t SQ ~~ . . 

Please this~osit in the account indicated below: 

t_ Civil Penalties Account, 95-1099.169 

Miscellaneous Receipt Account, 95-3220.160 
(Disgorgement) 
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PAY 
TO THE 
ORDER OF 

EMPIRE STATE REGIONAL 
COUNCIL OF CARPENTERS 
POLITICAL ACTION FUND • FEDERAL 

14 SAWMILL RIVER ROAD 
HAWTHORNE, NEW YORK 10532 

FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 

C.pir.l. Credenrlals. CommlamanL 

50-1412·214 

$ **75,000.00 

"3i12 

Seventy-Five Thousand and 00/1 00**************************************************************************************** DOLLARS 

MEMO 

FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
999 EAST STREET N.W. 
WASHINGTON, DC 20463 

FINES 

EMPIRE STATE REGIONAL COUNCIL OF CARPENTERS I ~/POLITICAL ACTION FUND • FEDERAL 

1//kL__ __ 
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 

. -- - ·-- ·- ·- ·--- ·---· ..... -· ................ ···-·· .. -·--·· .. ·- --·--·- . -- .. 

Q) 
EIQIRE STATE REGIONAL COUNCIL OF CARPENTERS 
P"EJ!ICAL ACTION FUND· FEDERAL 

""" FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
(t. 6330 · QUARTERLY REPORT FINES MUR 6468 ,.. 
q' 
v 
a;. 

"""' .... 

FIRST TRADE/FED P FINES 

. 3112 
7/27/2011 

75,000.00 

75,000.00 



~ECEPit:O 
FEDERAL ELECTION 

COMMISSION 

201 I APR 28 PM It: 32 

CELA 
BBFORB mE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 

IntheMatterof ) 
) PRE-MUR S07 

Empile S1ate RegioDBl Council of ) 
Carpenters; Empire State R.egional ) 
Calmcil ofCmpentea Politiall.Adim ) 
Fuacl-FedeiBl, 81111 Willi-. R. Banfic!lld, ) 
in Ids oftilial eap~City as tleallall' .. ) 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Shelley B. Garr, reccmtiDg secnDiy for the Feclend Blection Commiss;on executive 

session on April26, 2011, do hlnby certify that the Commission decided by a vote of S-0 to take 

the followiDg actions: 

1. Open.a MUR. 

2. Find JaSOD to believe that the Empire State Regicmal Council ofCarpentms 
mlated 2 U.S.C. § 432(b)(2) aod 11 C.F.R. §§ 102.6(cX4) and 102.8(b). 

3. Find reason to believe that Empire State Resional Council of Carpenters PAC­
FecleJal and WilliBl s.dilld, in his official ~ity as tl8aim'el', viollled 
2 U.S.C. § 432(b)(2) 8lld 11 C.F.R. § 102.6(c)(l) 

4. FimllaiSOD. to believe tflat Bm.pire State Reginal CoDDCil ofCalpenters PAC­
Pedeml and W'llliara Banfield, in his official capacity as tmasun:r, violatcd 
2 u.s.c. § 434(b). 

s. 

6. 



Federal Election Commissioner 
Certification for Pre-MUR S07 
April26, 2011 

Page2 

7. Approve the Legal aDd Factual ADalysis as recommeoded in the First General 
Counsel's RBJDi daied Pet.u.y 22, 2011, ~iect to tbl filllawiaJ .tits: on prJe 
2, line 12 mplace -.e do DOt" with "the Cammissioo does••" a&l oa .-p 4, 
line 10 delete the word "dimct." 

8. Approve the appropriate letters. 

Commissi0118D Bauerly, H11111er, McGa1m D, PetaleD, and Weintraub voted 

t-1 affirmatively tor the decision. CuaaissiDIB' Walther did not ·vete.. 

S eyE. Oarr 
Deputy Secaetaty of the Commission 

. ·' 



FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 

Stephen H Sholk, Esq. 
Gibbons P.C. 
One Gateway Center 
Newark, NJ 07102-5310 

Dear Mr. Sholk: 

"'' -1 2011 

RE: MUR6468 
Empile State Regional Council of 

. Carpenters 
Empire State Rcgicmal Council 
of Carpenters Political Action 
Fund-Federal, William R. Baufield, 
Treasurer 

On November 1, 2010, the Federal Eleetion Commission (the "Commission'') notified 
you of the receipt of your submission pertaining to possible violatious by your clients, the 
Empire State Regional Council of Carpenters, the Empire State Regional Council of Carpenters 
Political Action Fuod-Fodeml and W:ittiam R. Bllllfiold, in his officiAl upacity as treamaer, m 
certain sectioas of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended C'the Ac\''). 

After reviewing your initial submission, as well as supplements to that submission, the 
Commission, on April 26, 2011, found reason to believe that tlw Empire State ReJional Council 
ofCmpertters viltlated 2 U.S.C. § 432{b)(2), a povisiou of the Act, and 11 C.F.lt.§l02.6(c)(4) 
and 11 C.F.R. § 102.8{b) of the Commission's regulations, and that the Empire State Regional 
Council of Carpe.uters Political Adien F\md-Feclentl ant1 Wiiiiant R. Banfield, in111s official 
C8J8dty 111 tiiiiiUra, violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 432(b)(2) mlli 434(b), pro11i1lons oftlte Act, and 
11 C.P.R. § 102.6(c)(l) of the Ccnmaiaion's regulation~~ Bnralaacld is the Factual and Legal 
Aaalysis tJat sets :IDrth the basiu for tiD Commisuian's c!Btallliaati.oD. · 

Please note that your clients have a legal obligation to preserve all documents, records 
andmaterials relating to this matter until such time as you rue notified that the Commission has 
closed' Its file in this matter. See 11 U.S.C. § 1519. 



Letter to Counsel 
MUR 6468 (Empire State) 
Page2of2 

In the meantime, this matter will remain confidential in a=miance with 2 U.S.C. 
§§ 437g(a)(4)(B) and 437g(a)(12)(A) unless you notify the Commission in writing tbat your 
clients .wish the matter to be made-public. We look forward to your response. 

On behalf of the Commission, 

Enclosures 
Factual and Lepl Analysis 

I 
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 

FACfUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS 

RESPONDENT: Empire State Regional Council of Cupenters MUR 6468 
Empire Slate Rmgiaa.al Connc&il of Cmpenters Political Action 
Fund - Federal, and William R. Blllfield, iD. his. official capadt.y 
as tteasu:er 

I. GENERATION 01' MA'ITER 

This matter WIS generated basal on a llltllponte submission filed by Empire State 

Regional Colmcll of Carpootem (''fma]bc State") and the Etnplu~ State Rogional Co1mcil of 

Carpenters Palitical Action FwD.-Federal, aacl William B .. Banfield, i1x his ufEiabd capacity as 

aeasurer r'Federal PAC") notifying the Commission of Empire State's appamm failures to 

transfer contributions to its separate segregated fund ("SSF'), the Federal PAC. on a timely basis 

and other recordkceping and reporting discrepancies in violation of the Federal Election 

Campaign Act of 1971, as amended, ('ifue Act"). See 2 U.S.C.f437g(a)(2). 

18 ~ FACTUALS~Y 

19 It appears that. from 2001 onwmi, Empire State failed to traasfer political contributions 

20 collected from its members to the bBDk account of its SSF within the 30-day timeframe mandated 

21 by 2 U.S.C. § 432~)(2). lnslead, EmpiR Stare maintallled Cbtuc 1\mds for pmods cxoudina two 

22 years in o IDpi1'lte tiCl'Our acccnut~l whosu activity it did not ,teport to the Commission. 'Ole latal 

23 anmuot of escrow aa~~Cld. depo&its during 2001-2010 appam to be !2,174,348.09. 

24 Ia 2001, the Empire State Re&Jcmal Council of Carpentas formed from the merger of 

25 three separate New York carpenlm' unions. See Response to Memorandum at CJ[l. At that time. 

26 Empire State also organized its Federal and state PACs. Empire State acted as the collecting 

27 agent for both the Federal PAC and for its state and local (non-federal) PAC, the Empire State 

28 Regioual Council of Carpenters Political Action Fund-8tate (11NYS PAC"). To solicit 
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MUR 6468 (Empire State and Fcdcra1 PAC) 
Facaual aad Legal Analysis 
P.,e2of8 

contributions from union members, Empire State used a contribution card which stat:t:d that .. all 

contributions may be made to either the Federal PAC or the NYS PAC, or may be divided 

among the two PACs in the discretion of the Treasurers of the PACs." See Sllll Sponte 

Submission at p. 1 and Exhibit D. The employers of Empire State members withheld the 

members' voluntary PAC contributions together with all other union contributions (such as union 

dues) &cn1 the Ulli011 members' peycbecks aad aem checks in b a:nount of the withheld 

conbibutiaas to Bmpim StaiiD's fad office. Emplbyeea of F.mp• Stalr='s fuad office timD 

depoaited du!lac ~ into a geucnd accouat and tamsfened tile conbiibutiODI .alloaaed for dm 

fedaal and state PACs from the general account to the PAC escrow account. S. Raponse to 

Memorandum at Cf3. Bank records provided indicate that the transfers from f:he general fund to 

the PAC escrow account occurred within very short periods through automatic sweeps from bank 

account to bank account, but the Commission does not bave exact details on how long that 

transfer process took. Empire State (as the collecting agent) used a single escrow account into 

which it placed all contributions to its federal and state PACs. See Response to Memorandum at 

12. 11le baok records provided in response to OGC's request for additional infm'mltion indicate 

that Empire State deposited $2,174,348.09 intu the esclow account.1 

Aa diJouasnd Ca D:IIJI'e detail below, all of b collected plitiaal,emttribuliaaD plm:ed in 

the eacmw apcowlll wa:e availaiie to be used as fcdftral ftmala. EveJJbts!ly Empire State 

traDSferrecl the political contributi011s to the Federal PAC ar the NYS PAC ia response to specific 

1 As li'aaiic:d in tba Sublllli~Mion and the~ to Maual&llda1, Dmoilll State IJIIld its SaP 11bD,&ed bank aacowa 
durin& the time period discussed in this Factual and Lepl Analysis. cluC to the COIIIOlidatiOD of Empire State with 
other unions, CODSOlidation in the baDking iDdustry, aDd a wholesale cbangc in Empin: State's banking relationship 
&om BliDk &tf• America te Pint Trade Union Baak. As a result. at thz eDd of JUD& 2001 Empire State ceued deposiM 
of contributions into tbe escrow account 11 Bank of America aud began depositing all comributioas into m FTUB 
e&cJOW account (with li.aked cbecJda.g account, which received deposits aad then swept those deposils automatically 
into tm aac~wiCICCIJIIt). The Ji,mk of~ iOCOD cDiltiDued co 101:1110 intelut from 3006 daaugh 2009, w11D11 
Empia: Stla ciDicd IX Jllll)llll111aod ••Ciaal.ila remniaim&lltlauce of $219,000 to till: PnJB aarow acc:ount 011 

July 10, 21J09. 
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MUR 6468 (Empire State and Federal PAC) 
Factual and Lepl Analysis 
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1 requests by the treasurers of the committees for funds. Neither Empire State nor the Federal 

2 PAC reported to the Commission the escrow account balance, deposits or withdrawals. Once 

3 Empire State deposited the funds into the Federal PAC account, the Federal PAC reported those 

4 traDsfen to the Commission. 
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1he CII'OIS in Empire State's process came to light as a result of advice from Empire 

State's accou1ltmt, Shultheis & Panatiene, that tile escrow &eeoUJlt for the PACs might be 

.irreplar. See .RIII~1e to Mealorandlllll at 16. Elnpil:e State then ~OI!illld m ubmll review 

by its outaide oDunsc.\, Ca..--y Kmle, wbicb msultal in an April13, 2010 JllC'.mo to Empim. &am 

leadership outlinina errors in the transmittal and mporting process. See Sllll Sponte Submission 

Exhibit L Union leadership undertook an investigation as the URited Brotherhood of Carpenters 

and Joiners of America, ("UBC'') a larger union with which Empire State is affiliated, prepared 

to place Bmpire State under its supervision for administrative failures beginning on April26, 

2010. See Su Sponte Submission at p. 3. UBC's counsel then initiated the sllllsponte 

submission on behalf of Empire State and the Federal PAC, which was received on August 25, 

2010. During the c:hanp in leadeisb.ip of the union and the PAC, the Federal PAC failed to 

timely file its July 2010 Qaartcrly Report, which was addressed by the Administratb~ Pies 

program in AF-2164. The Fedlllll PAC filed m Amaultd July 2010 Quarterly Report on 

DeiCelllber 2, 2010, noting lll.Uilei'OIIS mrreetione to die originallata-fded repotL 

The .sua sponte submission states that when Empire Stata became aware of the transfer 

violalions, it stopped depositing contributions into the escrow account, and that it has begun 

depositing all ongoing political contributions collected from its membem into the Federal PAC 

account to ensure compliance with the thirty-day transmittal period under 2 U.S.C. 

§ 432(b)(2)(A) and 11 C.F.R. § 102.8(b). The bank records provided in response to the 



MUR 6468 (Empire State llld Federal PAC) 
Factual aad l.epl Analysis 
Page4of·B 

1 Commission's request for additional information support this representation. Empire State has 

2 also prepared and is using ~ new contribution card which states that all contributions will be 

3 made to the Federal PAC. See Exhibit J to the Submission. After receipt of the political 

4 contributions, the Federal PAC can, at its discretion, transfer unlimited funds to the NYS PAC 

S under 11 C.P.R. § 102.6(a)(l)(i). Further, as part of its .rua .rpon.te submission, Empire State . 

6 requests the Commission's appnwal Df its plan to transfer the remaining funds in the escrow 

7 acaunt, ($524,329.98 • of October 29, 2010), 10 the NYS PAct acccmnt ancl cllllll8 tile escrr,w 

8 account. 

9 m. LEGAL ANALYSIS 

10 The Act prohibits labor organizations from making contributions in connection with 

11 federal elections. 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a). However, labor organizations may establish and 

12 administer separate segregated funds for political purposes, solicit contributions to those funds 

13 from members and their families, and collect funds on behalf of their SSFs as ••collecting 

14 agents." 2 U.S.C. §§ 44lb(b)(2)(C) and (4)(A)(ii); and 11 C.P.R.§ 102.6(b). 

1S Pursuant to 11 C.F.R. § 102.6(b)(1), ••[a] collecting agent is an organization or committee 

16 that collects and transmits coatribations to tD& or mcm= sopane seg~epted funds to which the 

17 collecting agmt i8 11:latecl." CollectinJ agents may traasfer unl~ fancls •'tu a separate 

11 segregalal ~i made pumuaot to 1.1 C.P.R. I 102.6." 11 C.F.R. § l.l0.3(c)(1). Collecting 

19 agents thr.t are not otherwi.~ org&r".izations required to register with the Commission as political 

20 committees, and that fulfill the requiremems of 11 C.F.R.§102.6(c), are not required to register 

21 and report as political committees so long as the collecting agent does not engage in actions such 

22 as m•king contributions or expenditures. 11 C.F.R.§102.6(b)(2) However, separate segregated 
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MUR 6468 (Empire State and Federal PAC) 
Factual and Legal Analysis 
Pap !I ofB 

funds that receive contributions collected by collecting agents must report those contributions to 

the extent required by 2 U.S.C. § 104.3(a). 11 C.P.R. § 102.6(c)(7). 

Bvery person, including a collecting agent, who receives a contribution of SSO or less for 

a political committee which is not an authorized committee shall forward such contribution to the 

treasurer of the committee within 30 days of receipt. 2 U .S.C. §432(b )(2)(A). 11 C.F .R. 

§ UJ2.8(b)(l) _ancll i e.P .R.. § 102.6(c}(4). A anion, u the collecting agent for its SSF, may 

receive from mam.flers• employers a combiiiBd payment iaDluding "volunta:ey CCIIlbibatimll1 to the 

ur..!Dil'o sepamte segregated f\..uad ad wnon dues or other 8111p!oyee deductions." 11 C.P.R. 

I 10l.6(c)(3). Upon receiving such combined payments, the union must segregate the SSF 

contributions fmm the other union funds. To accomplish segregating the contributions, the 

union, as its SSF's collecting agent, must either set up 1) "a transmittal accowtt to be used solely 

for the deposit and transmittal of funds collected on behalf of the separate segregated fund." all 

of which such funds are subject to the Act's prohibitions and limitations; 2) deposit such 

contributions into the agent's treasury account, keeping separate records, or 3) deposit them into 

an account used otherwise only "for State and local el~on ac:tivity," again keeping seplll'lte 

records of the contrlbutioos r=eivetl for tha SSP. 11 C.P.R. § 102.6(c){4)(ii). 

The collaadag agant DUUJt "retain all tiCOida of CODtrihutiClO •positll and tnmsmilals •.• 

for a period of three yan .... " 11 C.F.R. § 102.6(c)(6). 'lbe separate cegregatecl fund for 

which the collectimgasent is col!ec~ funds is rmpaasible for "ensuring that the recardkeeping. 

reporting, and transmittal requirements" of the regulations are met by the collecting agent. 

11 C.P.R. § 102.6(c)(1). The Act requires that committees (other than authorized committees of 

candidates) report, for the reporting period and calendar year, the total amount of all receipts, see 
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MUR 6468 (Empire State and Fedeql PAC) 
Factual and Legal Amllysis 
Page6 of8 

2 U.S.C. l434(b)(2), the total amount of all disbursements, see 2 U.S.C. §434(b)(4); and the 

total amount of all transfers to affiliated committees, see 2 U.S.C.§434(b)(4)(C). 

1. Tbning of Transfen 

Empire State, as a labor organization, could properly serve as a collecting agent for its 

own connected SSP, and the voluntary contributions coDectecl by Empire State wen: permissible 

contributicms under the Act. 2 U.S.C. §§44lb(b)(2XC) and (4)(AXii); and 11 C.P.R. 

§ 102.6(b). However, t!te timing of the ongoing transfers from dte escrow account to the Federal 

PAC violates the .&ct. As outlircd above, 2 U.S.C. §432(b)(2) requires my recipient to forward 

contributions under $50 no later tha&l30 days after receipt, and 11 C.P.R.§ 10~6(c)(4) confirms 

that this timeframc applies to collecting agents. According to the slll.lrponte submission, Empire 

State did not transfer any of the amounts collected in the escrow account to the Federal PAC 

within 30 days of receipt See Sllll Sponle Submission at p. 2. The bank records provided, when 

compared with the Federal PAC's disclosure reports filed with the Commission, indicate that 

from the date that Empire State deposited contributions into the escrow account, more than two 

years passed before the Federal PAC reported receiving transfer of any of those contributions.2 

The Commission therefore finds reason to believe that the Empire State Regional Co~m.cil of 

CarplllteiS violated 2 U.S.C. §432(bX2) and 11 C.F.R. §§ 102.6(c)(4) md 102.1(b) by failiDg to 

transmit fuDd& from itl escrow accoaut witbiD .tlae t!Us:ty-day pedod established by the stablte and 

19 regulatioos. 

~ eampJe. thougb the escrow accoUDt accumulated $389.423.19 in new coalributions durin& 2006, aDd 
$301.739.17 in new contriblltiolis in 'Jl1J1,11011e oftbat money was traDsfe.rral to tbe Federal PAC"s accouat durinl 
2006 or 2CXTI, u reflected iD tbe Pedenl PAC"s bank statements ud its FBC disclosure ~.:ports. Not until the July 
2008 Quarterly Report did tbe Federal PAC report receipt of funds, disclosing receipt of S 10,000 in on-itemized 
CODtributioDS in tbat quarter. 1be Pederal PAC reported receiving $15.000 iD un-ilmlized receipts on ill 2009 Mid­
Year Report. aod au additioDal $100.000 in un-itemized receipt& on i112009 Year-Ead Report. 
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MUR 6468 (Empin: State and Federal PAC) 
Factual and Lepl Analysis 
Page7af8 

As noted above, pursuant to 11 C.F.R.§102.6(c)(1), separate segregated funds are 

responsible for ensuring that their collecting agents comply with the recordkeeping, reporting 

and transmittal requirements of 11 C.F.R. § 102.6. The Federal PAC did not ensure that Empire 

State properly forwanled contributions within the required timeframes. See Sa Spon~ 

Submission at p. 2. Therefore, there is reason to believe that the Empire State Regional Council 

of Carpenters PAC-Federal and its treas-.er, William R. BIDfield, aCting in his official capacity, 

violi.llld 2 U.S.C. § 432(b)(2) •ld 11 C.F.R.I102.6(c)(1) by failing to ensure that its collectidg 

agent. Bmpille State RegiODDI OCIDDSil of Carpentllrs, complied wilh the Act's trar.smiltal 

requirmnents with regard to the funds llan&feiiecl from the escrow account to the Federal PAC. 

See MUR 5229 (SEW Local1199) (the Commission found reason to believe against both the 

collecting agent and the SSP where the union, acting as the collecting agent, failed to timely 

transfer funds, and the SSP failed to ensure that the collecting agent complied with the law.) 

2. ReportiD1 VIolations 

Empire State's failure to comply with the 30-day transmittal requirements of 2 U.S.C. 

. § 432(b)(2) and 11 C.P.R. § 102.8(b), as required by 11 C.P.R. §102.6(c)(4), caused the Federal 

PAC to under-repert its cash-on-hand in violation of 2 U.S.C. §434(b) from 2001 undl the 

pmsmt. Blbml:le &111ire State Billie all of tile funds collected in the escmw acoouat avaiJD~Ie 

for federal uae but .thefe amounts \1fC1'e DOl pi'Ope11ly iepOrtai io the Collllllisaian • cash-on-.iw¥1, 

the fimds were thus undetectable by the public. The cumulative failaa'I[CS to report cash-on-hand 

from 2006 to the present total $6,400 .. 000 over 16 reporting periods, or $1,475,468.52 in unique 

un-n:ported funds. 

Although Empire State also made the funds in the escrow account available for state and 

local use, and eventually transferred some of the funds to the NYS PAC, it failed to differentiate 
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MUR 6468 (Empire State and Federal PAC) 
Factual and Legal Analysis 
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the funds in the account by intended use. It could have differentiated the funds by either l) 

treating all of the receipts as reportable federal receipts and then transferring money as needed to 

the non-federal account by using the unlimited transfer rule of 11 C.F.R. § l02.6(a)(1)(i) (as was 

approved in Advisory Opinion 1981-59 (Nat Assoc. of Realtors)); or 2) specifically soliciting 

contributions to the non-federal account as such (or at least having the donor designate a specific 

slmre of his m her contribadon unon-federal) and d~iq thoDe funds upoa reoalpt in the 

nan.-fi:deral NYS PAC aoount, at which•paintldtey wo1ild: be uaavllilable fm: fadeD\ use, even 

thoul)t rab&rwise within the Act's limibtia. or prohibiti.?DS. Blacame Empire Stale failaclm 

differenum the funds in the es.cmw accorm" it should have rv.ported, as part of its cash-~n-hand, 

all funds in the escrow account at the end of each relevant reporting period because the entire 

contents of the account were available for federal use. Empire State has represented that, as pan 

of its remedial measures in this matter, it has adopted the first course above as its method for 

differentiating funds going forward. It deposits all contributions to its PACs into the Fedenl 

PAC account, reports all teeeipts to the Commission, and then disburses funds as needed to the 

NYS PAC under the unHmitr:d tl1mSfer mle of 11 C.F.R. 1102.6(aXl)(i), and reports those 

17 Th.emfare, thercl is n:IDIOD to believe dtat tile Feclend PAC violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(b) by 

18 failing to r.port fwMis availllble fQI' federal use in the escrow account as cash-on-hand during the 

19 periods covced by the 2006 April Quarterly Report thmurJt the 2010 April Quarterly Report. 
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

BY: 

The Commission 

Christopher Hughey 
Acting General Counsel 

Kathleen M. Guith 
Acting Associate General Counsel for Enforcement 

Peter G. Blumberg {Jg,{'t \tr 
Assistant General Counsel cJ 

Audra Hale-Maddox l \\W\. 
Attorney ""'' ,, ' 

RECEIVED 
FEDERAL ELECTION 

COHMlSSlON 

lOll AUG -a. Al1 ll: l I 

CELA 

-liVE 

~ 
G') 

I 
z::: 

l> 
-.. 
w 
U1 

SUBJECT: MUR 6468 (Fonpire State Regional Council of Carpenters, et al.) 

RE: Pre-Probable Cause Conciliation Agreement 

Attached is a conciliation agreement signed by representatives of the Empire State 
Regional Council of Carpenters ("Empire State") and the Empire State Regional Council 
of Carpenters Political Action Fund-Federal and William R. Banfield, in his official 
capacity as treasurer, ("Federal PAC"). The agreement would settle violations of 
2 U.S.C. §§ 432(b) BDd 434(b), amll1 C.F.R. §§ 102.6(o). and 102.8(b), stemming flom 
Empire Statt:'s failure, as the coUecfl.ng agent for the Federal PAC, to timely forward 
contributions to the Federai PAC, instead maintaining the collected funds in aa 
undisclosed escrow account. The Federal PAC failed to ensure that its collecting agent 
forwarded funds to it in a timely manner, and failed to report the funds in the esorow 
account as cash-on-hand over a period of years. 

L, 
The agreement recites tht pertinent facts of this matter and contains 

admissions· to violatiens of the Act m:td the Commission's regulations, as well as an 
agreement to cease and desist from further violations and amend the Federal P AC's 
reporting within 60 days of the effective date of the agreement. In addition, Respondents 
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MUR 6468 (Empire State, et al.) 
Memorandum to the Commission 

agree to pay a civil penalty of$75,000, 
I 

2 

After the Commission made its reason to believe findings in this matter, counsel 
for Empire State .netified OGC 1ha1 Empire State hftd merged into a new union, tile 
Northeast Regional Council of Carpenters. This new UJ'I..ion has accepted responsibility 
for entering into the Conciliation Agreement as the successor-in-interest to Empire State, 
and has agreed to be bound by the terms of the Conciliation Agreement. Accordingly, 
the conciliation agreement includes a statement at Paragraph IV. 1. noting the merger of 
Empire State into the Northeast Regional Council of Carpenters and explains that the 
Northeast Regional Council of Carpenters erlters into the Conciliation Agreement on its 
predeoessor's behalf. See MUJI! 5268 (Kentucky Council of Carpenters) (using same 
langlliCge in a Conciliation Agreement with a succossor-in-inte1est). I al!IO 
include a statement that the cw.aent treasurer was not the treasure:r of the Federal PAC at 
the time of the events recounted in thr. conoiliation agreement. 

We believe that the changes represent a reasonable compromise in settlement of 
this matter. Therefore, we recommend that the Commission accept the signed 
conciliation agreement, approve the appropriate letters, and close the file. 

RECOMMENDA"FIONS 

1. Accept the signed conciliation agreement; 

2. Approve the appropriate letters; and 

3. Close the file. 



BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 

In the Matter of 

Empire State Regional Council of 
Carpenters, now known as Northeast 
Regional Council of Carpenters, as 
successor-in-interest; Empire State 
Regional Council of Carpenters Political 
Action Fund-Federal and William R. 
Banfield, in his official capacity as 
treasurer 

) 
) 
) MUR6468 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

CERTJFICATION 

I, Shelley E. Garr, Deputy Secretary of the Federal Election Commission, 

do hereby certify that on August 17, 2011, the Commission decided by a vote of 

5-0 to take the following actions in MUR 6468: 

1. Accept the signed conciliation agreement, as recommended in the 
General Counsel's Report dated August 4, 2011. 

2. Approve the appropriate letters. 

3. Close the file. 

Commissioners Bauerly, Hunter, McGahn II, Walther, and Weintraub voted 

affirmatively for the decisinn. Commissioner Petersen did not vote. 

~ <,M-.5/- l'f, QtiJI/ 
Q Date 

Attest: 

Deputy Secretary of the Commission 



FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 

AU& 2 2 2011 

VIA FIRST CLASS MAIL AND FACSIMILE 

Steven H. Sholk, Esq. 
Gibbons, P.C. 
One Gateway Center 
Newark, NJ 07102-5310 

Dear Mr. Sholk: 

RE: MUR6468 
Empire State Regional Council of 
Carpenters, et. al. 

On August 17, 2011, the Federal Election Commission accepted the signed 
conciliation agreement submitted on behalf of your clients, Empire State Regional Council of 
Carpenters ("Empire State") now known as Northeast Regional Council of Carpenters, as 
successor-in-interest, and its separate segregated fund, the Empire State Regional Council of 
Ca..rpeuters Political Action Fund-Federal and William R. Banfield, in his official capacity as 
treasurer ("Federal PAC") (collectively, "Respondents"). 11m Commission acoepted the 
conciliation agreennmt in settlement ofviolatians of2 U.S.C. § 432(b)(2) and l1 C.F.R. 
§§ 102.6(c)(4) and 102.8(b) by Emphe State, and of2 U.S.C. §§ 432(b)(2) and 434(b) and 
II C.P.R. § 102.6(c)(l) by the Fede11al PAC. Accordingly, the file has been closed in tbis·mntter. 

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. See 
Statement of Policy Regarding Disclosure of Closed Enforcement and Related Files, 68 Fed. 
Reg. 70,426 (Dec. 18, 2003) and Statement of Policy Regarding Placing First General Counsel1

S 

Reports on the Public Record, 74 Fed. Reg. 66132 (Dec. 14, 2009). Information derived in 
connection with any conciliation attempt will not become public without the written conse.1.1t of 
the respondents and the Commission. See 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(4)(B). 

Enclosed you will find a aopy of the: fully executed conciliation agreement for yeur filos. 
If you ha'Ve any questions, please contact me at (202) 694-1650. 

Enclosure 
Conciliation Agreement 

Audra Hale-Maddox 
Attorney 



BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 

In the Matter of ) 
) MUR6468 

Empire State Regional Council of ) 
Carpenters, now known as Northeast ) 
Regional Council of Carpenters, as ) 
successor-in-interest ) 

Empire State Regional Council of ) 
Carpenters Political Action Fund-Federal ) 
and William R. Banfield, in his ) 
official capacity as treasurer ) 

CONCILIATION AGREEMENT 

This matter was initiated by a sua sponts submission made to the Federal Election 

Commission (''the Commission'') by the Empire State Regional Council of Carpenters ("Empire 

State'') now known as Northeast Regional Council of Carpenters," as successor-in-interest, and its 

separate segregated fund, the Empire State Regional Council of Carpenters Political Action 

Fund-Federal and William R. Banfield, in his official capacity as treasurer ("Federal PAC'') 

(collectively, "Respondents''). The Commission found reason to believe that Empire State 

violated 2 U.S.C. § 432(b)(2) and 11 C.F.R. §§ 102.6(c)(4) and 102.8(b), and that the Federal 

PAC violated 2 U.S.C. §§ 432(b)(2) and 434(b) and t 1 C.F.R. § 102.6(c)(l). 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Cmnmission and the Respondents, having participated in 

infonnalmethods of conciliation, do hereby agree as follows: 

I. The Commission has jurisdiction over the Respondents and the subject matter of 

this proceeding, and this agreement has the effect of an agreement entered pursuant to 2 U.S.C. 

§ 437g(a)(4)(A)(i). 

II. Respondents have had a reasonable opportunity to demonstrate that no action 

should be taken in this matter. 



Conciliation Agreement 
MUR 6468 (Empire State) 
Page2of7 

III. Respondents enter voluntarily into this agreement with the Commission. 

IV. The pertinent facts in this matter are as follows: 

1. The Empire State Regional Council of Carpenters was a New York 

carpenter's and joiner's union fonned in July 2001 from the merger of three pre-existing New 

York unions. Empire State is a labor organization within the meaning of2 U.S.C. § 44lb{b)(l). 

On April 5, 20t 1, the Empire State Regional Council of Carpenters merged with another union 

to form the Northeast Regional Counail of Carpenters. The Northeast Regional Council.of 

Carpenters is a party to this matter solely as successor-in-interest to the Empire State Regional 

Council of Carpenters. Although the No~east Regional Council of Carpenters was not the 

focus of the Commission's reason to believe findings in this matter, the Northeast Regional 

Council of Carpenters recognizes that it is a respondent herein as successor-in-interest to Empire 

State and is thus bound by this Conciliation Agreement. 

2. The Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended ("the Act"), 

prohibits labor organizations from making contributions in connection with Federal elections. 

2 U.S.C. § 44lb(a). However, it permits labor organizations to establish and administer sepamte 

segregated funds for political purposes and to solicit contributions to those funds from members 

and their families. 2 U.S.C. § 44lb{b)(2)(C) and (4)(A)(ii). 

3. The Empire State Regional Council of Carpenters Poli!ical Action Fund-

Federal is the separate segregated fund of the Empire State Regional Council of Carpenters 

within the meaning of2 U.S.C. § 441b{bX2)(C) and II C.F.R. § 114.5. The Federal PAC is a 

political committee within the meaning of2 U.S.C. § 431{4). William R. Banfield is the current 

treasurer of the Federal PAC, and was not the treasurer at the time of the activity addressed in 

this Agreement 



Conciliation Agreement 
MUR 6468 (Empire State) 
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4. Upon the formation of Empire State in July 2001, the Federal PAC took 

over the PAC previously operated by one of the three pre-existing New York unions that merged 

to form Empire State- the Suburban New York Council of Carpenters PAC. On March 11, 

2002, the Federal PAC amended the Suburban New York Council of Carpenters PAC's 

Statement of Organization with the Commission, and at all times subsequent, the Fedeml PAC 

has been registered with the Commission as a political committee pursuant to 2 U.S.C. § 433. 

S. Empire State serves as the collecting agent for the Federal PAC. A 

"collecting agent" is an organization or committee that collects and transmits contributions to 

one or more separate segregated funds to which the collecting agent is related. 11 C.F .R. 

§ I 02.6(b )(1 ). The connected organization of a separate segregated fund may act as its collecting 

agent. 11 C.F.R. § 102.6(b)(1)(ii). 

6. Pursuant to 2 U.S.C. § 432(b)(2)(A) and 11 C.F.R. § 102.8(b)(l), every 

person who receives a contribution of $50 or less for a political committee that is not an 

authorized committee of a candidate shall forward such contribution to the treasurer of the 

committee within 30 days of receipt. 

7. A eollecting agent must traasmit to the treasurer of a separate segregated 

fund for which it collects contributions the full amount of each contribution collected within 30 

days of receipt, in the case of contributions of$50 or less, pursuant to 11 C.F.R. § 102.8(b). 

11 C.F.R. § 102.6(c)(4). 

8. For purposes of making transmittals of contributions received in forms 

other than chec~ made payable to the separate segregated fund, the collecting agent must either: 

1) set up a transmittal account to be used solely for the deposit and transmittal of funds collected 

on behalf of the separate segregated fund; or 2) deposit such contributions into the collecting 
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agent's treasury accoun~ keeping separate records; or 3) deposit them into an account used only 

for State and local election activity. II C.F.R. § 102.6(c)(4)(ii). 

9. A separate segregated fund for which funds are being collected by a 

collecting agent is responsible for ensuring that its collecting agent complies with the applicable 

recordkeeping., reporting and transmittal requirements of the Commission's regulations. 

11 C.F.R.§ 102.6(c)(1). 

10. Political committees (other than authorized committees of candidates) are 

required to report to the Commission, fur the reporti .. ng period and the calendar year 1 the total 

amount of all receipts. 2 U.S.C. § 434(b)(2). 

11. At all times relevant hereto, Empire State's members could make political 

contributions, by means of payroll deduction, to both the Federal PAC and to Empire State's 

non-federal State and local political committee, the New York State Political Action Committee 

("NYS PAC"). 

12. The contributions card by which Empire State solicited contributions to its 

Federal PAC and its non-federal political committee stated that "all contributions may be made 

to either the Federal PAC or tire NYS PAC, or may be divided among the two PACs in the 

discretion of the Treasurers of the P ACs." 

13. Beginning with the founding of Empire State in its current fonn in July 

2001, and continuing through April 2010, Empire State maintained an escrow account into which 

it deposited its members' political contributions. The amounts contained in the escrow account 

totaled $2,174,348.09. 

14. None of these funds were transferred from the escrow account to the 

Federal PAC within 30 days of receipt. 
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15. The Federal PAC did not report any of the funds available to it in the 

escrow account as cash on hand on its FEC disclosure reports. 

v. 1. Empire State violated 2 U.S.C. § 432(b)(2) and 11 C.F.R. § 102.6(cX4) by 

failing to transfer funds from its collecting agent accounts to the Federal PAC in a timely 

manner. 

2. The Federal PAC violated 2 U.S.C. § 432(b)(2) and 11 C.F.R. 

§ 102.6(c)(l) by failing to ensure that its collecting agent, Empire State, forwardad funds to it in 

a timely manner. 

3. The federal PAC violated 2 U.S.C. § 434(b) by failing to disclose the 

cash-on-hand available to it in the escrow accounts. 

VI. 1. Respondents will cease and desist from violating 2 U.S.C. § 432(b)(2) and 

11 C.F.R. § 102.6(c). 

2. The Federal PAC will cease and desist from violating 2 U.S.C. § 434(b). 

3. Respondents will pay a civil penalty to the Federal Election Commission 

in the amount of seventy-five thousand dollars ($75,000), pursuant to 2 U.S.C. § 437g(a)(S)(A). 

4. The Federal PAC will amend its disclosure reports to reflect the available 

cash-on-hand for the raporting pedods frmn thn initiation of its reporting thrmlgh the present. 

The Federal PAC will be allowed tp file one omnibus amended report to reflect all applicable 

cash-on-hand balances through the present. 

VII. The Commission, on request of anyone filing a complaint under 2 U.S.C. 

§ 437g{a){l) concerning the matters at issue herein or on its own motion, may review compliance 

with this agreement. If the Commission believes that this agreement or any requirement thereof 
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has been violated, it may institute a civil action for relief in the United States District Court for 

the District of Columbia. 

VIII. This agreement shall become effective as of the date that all parties hereto have 

executed same and the Commission has approved the entire agreement. 

IX. Respondents shall have no more than 30 days from the date this agreement 

becomes effective to comply with and implement the requirements contained in this agreement 

and to so notify~ the Commission, with the exception of Section VI. 4. Respondents shall have no 

more than 60 days to comply with and implement the requirements of Section VI. 4, cozlceming 

filing amended disclosure reports with the Commission. 



Conciliation Agreement 
MUR 6468 (Empire Srate) 
Page 7 of7 

X. This Conciliation Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 

on the matters raised herein, and no other statement, promise, or agreement, either written or 

oral, made by either party or by agents of either party, that is not contained in this written 

agreement shall be enforceable. 

FOR 1HE COMMISSION: 

Christopher Hughey 
Acting General Counsel 

. BY: . kteGt~ 
Kathleen Guith 
Acting Associate General Counsel 

for Enforcement 

FOR 1HE RESPONDENTS: 

e~ 
Executive Secretary-Treasw-er 
Northeast Regional Council of Carpenters, 
formerly known as Empire State Regional 
Council of Carpenters 

William R. Banfield 
Treasurer 
Empire State Regional Council 
of Carpenters Political Action 
Fund-Federal 

Date 1 I 

Date 

.,f~!tt 
Date1 I 


	11044301749
	11044301770
	11044301773
	11044301784
	11044301787
	11044301789

